

Travel Insurance Policy

PLEASE READ THIS POLICY CAREFULLY

Premium shown includes applicable taxes. The premium is fixed.

Travel insurance is designed to cover losses arising from sudden and unforeseeable circumstances during **Your Period of Insurance**. It is important that **You** read and understand **Your** policy before **You** travel as **Your** coverage may be subject to certain limitations or exclusions.

This policy provides complete descriptions of the benefits, terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions of **Your** insurance coverage.

Along with this policy document, **You** should have received a Confirmation of Coverage that sets out details specific to the product **You** purchased. All of these documents make up **Your** contract of insurance. If **You** did not receive all of these documents, if any information contained in these documents is incorrect, or if **You** have questions regarding **Your** coverage, it is **Your** responsibility to contact **Us** at:

For coverage questions:

Cancellation Plan, Protection Plan, Basic Trip Protection, Trip Protection Plus, Premier Trip Protection Residents of Quebec only

Toll Free: 1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Residents of other provinces

Toll Free: 866-591-5452

International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

Collision Damage Plan (Car rental) - All provinces

Toll free: 1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Hours of Operation:

Monday to Friday - 7.00 am to 7.00 pm Central except public holidays

This policy is the only contract under which benefits are paid. You should bring all of these documents with You when You travel.

This insurance is designed to cover certain emergency medical expenses resulting from unanticipated Incidents during **Your Trip**. **Your** policy does not provide coverage for medical conditions and/or symptoms that existed before **You** booked **Your Trip**, purchased this insurance or before the **Policy Inception Date**. Check to see how this applies in **Your** policy and how it relates to Your departure date, date of purchase or effective date.

In the event of an Accident, Injury or **Illness Your** prior medical history may be reviewed at the time of claim. **Your** policy provides travel assistance; **You** are required to notify the designated assistance company prior to treatment. **Your** policy may limit benefits should **You** fail to contact the assistance company within a specified period.

Depending on the coverage **You** have purchased, the policy may contain a provision removing or restricting the right of the Insured Person to designate persons to whom or for whose benefit insurance money is to be payable. See section "Beneficiary Designation and Change" of this policy for detailed information with respect to this restriction. Further information can also be obtained:

Cancellation Plan, Protection Plan, Basic Trip Protection, Trip Protection Plus, Premier Trip Protection Residents of Quebec only

Toll free: 1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Residents of other provinces

Toll Free: 866-591-5452

International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

Collision Damage Plan (Car rental) - All provinces

Toll free: 1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Hours of Operation:

Monday to Friday – 7.00 am to 7.00 pm Central except public holidays

Limitation of Action

Every action or proceeding against an Insurer for the recovery of insurance money payable under the contract is absolutely barred unless commenced within the time set out in the *Insurance Act* (for actions or proceedings governed by the laws of Alberta and British Columbia). *The Insurance Act* (for actions or proceedings governed by the laws of Manitoba), the *Limitations Act*, 2002 (for actions or proceedings governed by the laws of Ontario), or other applicable legislations.

WARNING: THIS POLICY INCLUDES RESTRICTED BENEFITS

- 1. You are not covered for any Pre-existing conditions on Your Trip as below:
 - a. if any Illness, disease or Injury suffered by You, Your Relative, business associate, or Travelling Companion which, in the one (1) year period before You purchased this insurance for benefit Section A Trip Cancellation & Postponement, or before the Policy Inception Date for other benefits
 - i. first manifested itself, worsened, became acute or exhibited symptoms that would have caused an ordinarily prudent person to seek diagnosis, care or treatment;
 - ii. required taking prescribed drugs or medicine, or tests, or further investigation had been recommended by a **Medical Practitioner**
 - iii.was treated by a **Medical Practitioner**, or treatment had been recommended by a **Medical Practitioner**; or
 - b. any congenital, hereditary, chronic or ongoing condition of **Yours**, **Your Relative**, business associates, or **Travelling Companion** which **You**, or they, are aware of, or could reasonably be expected to be aware of, before **You** purchased this insurance for benefit **Section A Trip Cancellation & Postponement** or before the **Policy Inception Date** for other benefits.
- 2. You may be responsible for 30% of any eligible expenses incurred, or you may not be reimbursed for Your claim, if:
 - a. You did not contact Us before seeking medical attention; or
 - b. if Your medical condition prevented You from calling You did not have someone call on Your behalf; and
 - c. You did not call to allow Our medical department to approve all medical procedures.
- 3. If You choose not to receive treatment or services from a medical provider as directed by Us You may be responsible for 70% of any eligible expenses incurred.
- 4. The coverage provided by this policy does not apply to risks and claims related to Cuba, as Cuba related risks and claims are not serviced and supported by **Our** United States affiliates (upon which **We** rely for service and support), unless such coverage would be permissible under all applicable sanctions.
- 5. The Insurer will not be liable to provide any coverage or make any payment hereunder if to do so would be in violation of any sanctions law or regulation which would expose the Insurer, its parent company or its ultimate controlling entity to any penalty under any sanctions law or regulations.
- 6. This policy will not cover any loss, Injury, damage or legal liability arising directly or indirectly from planned or actual travel in, to, or through Iran, Syria, North Korea or the Crimea region.
- 7. This policy offers coverage only to Canadian Residents travelling outside of their Home.

Please refer to the policy wordings for the full details of benefits, terms and exclusions that are applicable. The information provided in this document is a brief summary for quick and easy reference. The complete terms and conditions that apply are stated in the policy wordings. If **You** have any queries, **You** may contact Us at:

Customer Relations

Address: 120 Bremner Boulevard, Suite 2200, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5J 0A8

Canada & Continental USA: 866-591-5452 (toll free)

International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

Email: CA.expcustsvc@aig.com

How do I make a claim?

To submit a claim under this policy, You will need to send a completed claim form with all original bills and receipts from commercial organizations attached. Please take care in filling out the form as any missing information may cause a delay in payment of Your claim.

For non-medical Claims, You may submit Your Claim by registering Your Claim online through Our Claim Portal https://claims.travelguard.com/myclaim/ca or submitting a completed claim form. See section How To Make A Claim, including the Important Note at the end of the section, for complete details on submitting a Claim.

Can I cancel my policy?

If this cover is not suitable for **You** and **You** want to cancel **Your** policy, **You** must contact **Expedia** using the information provided below within fifteen (15) days of buying **Your** policy or the date **You** receive **Your** policy documents, whichever is later, provided **Your Trip** has not commenced.

In line with the conditions below, **Your** premium will be refunded within fifteen (15) business days from the date **Your** request for cancellation is acknowledged and confirmed.by **Expedia**. **Your premium will not be** refunded if **You** have travelled or made a **Claim** before **You** asked to cancel the policy within the fifteen (15) day period.

Expedia Customer Support Phone: Local toll free 800 469 1793

Call from abroad, charges apply +1 417 521 0859

Expedia Customer Support Portal: https://www.expedia.ca/service

Insurance is underwritten by AIG Insurance Company of Canada, 120 Bremner Boulevard, Suite 2200, Toronto, Ontario, Canada.

M5J 0A8. The policy is administered on AlG Insurance Company of Canada's behalf by Travel Guard Group Canada, Inc. (Travel Guard Canada).

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

- About This Product
- Table Of Benefits
- Coverage during Your Period Of Insurance
- Your Right To Complain

ABOUT THIS POLICY

- Maximum Trip Duration
- Age Limits
- Cancellations And Refunds

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

- General Information
- Before You Travel
 - Health Conditions
 - Sports And Activities
 - Important Notices for Canadians Residents
- Medical And Other Emergencies
- How To Make A Claim
- General Definitions
- General Conditions
- General Exclusions
- Your Benefits Under this Policy
 - Section A Trip Cancellation & Postponement
 - Section L Emergency & Pre-Travel Assistance
- IMPORTANT CONTACT DETAILS

INTRODUCTION

About This Product

Please note: Terms shown in bold in this policy have defined meanings given to them in the **General Definitions** section of this document. This policy document is only valid when issued in conjunction with a **Certificate of Insurance** and if the required insurance premium has been paid.

It is important to note that the insurance policy offered to You is specific to Your Country of Residence and therefore it is essential that You should select the correct Country of Residence at time of purchase.

You are only covered for:

- the period of Your Trip booked through Expedia, for example, for Hotel-only bookings, You are only covered for your Hotel Stay (see the coverage period details in section Coverage during Your Period of Insurance), not for Your whole Trip; and
- (ii) travel products or services booked through Expedia.

This policy provides cover on a worldwide basis, subject to the territorial exclusion noted below. This means cover is provided for **Your Trips**:

- (a) within Your Country of Residence (Domestic Trip); and
- (b) anywhere in the world outside **Your Country of Residence** or **Country of Departure** as applicable depending on the country from where **You** originally depart as per **Your Travel Itinerary (Overseas Trip)**.

<u>Please note</u>: This policy will not cover any claims, loss, injury, damage or legal liability arising directly or indirectly from planned or actual travel in, to, or through Cuba, Iran, Syria, North Korea or the Crimea region.

The following cover is provided for each **Insured Person**. It is important that **You** refer to the individual sections of cover for full details of what **You** are entitled to should **You** need to make a **Claim**.

Table Of Benefits

Global Cancellation Plan

Section	Benefits	Sum insured up to: (Per insured person)
Α	Trip Cancellation & Postponement	CAD 9,800.00
L	Emergency & Pre-Travel Assistance	Included

Important notes:

- 1. Section may not appear in sequence depending on the policy purchased.
- 2. Both the minimum and maximum ages are determined based on age at the Policy Inception Date.

3. Important Note applicable to Sections B1 – Emergency Medical Expenses and B2 – Emergency Medical Evacuation & Repatriation (If these benefits are included in the Table of Benefits above): Benefits payable for any necessary and reasonable medical, emergency evacuation and repatriation costs that You incur as a result of Your suffering during Your Overseas Trip from a communicable disease, the outbreak of which is declared an epidemic or pandemic by the World Health Organization or by any official governmental body or health authority, are limited to a maximum amount of C\$262,000 only in the aggregate for both Sections B1 and B2.

By signing below, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Insurer Provider agree on behalf of the Insurer Provider to all the terms of this policy.

President and Chief Executive

Officer

AIG Insurance Company of Canada

Coverage during Your Period Of Insurance

Each benefit has a specific coverage period during Your Period of Insurance as follows:

Coverage during Your Period of Insurance for policies purchased with a Flight only:

- 1. Cover for Trip Cancellation & Postponement (wherever applicable) starts at the later of:
 - the time You book Your Trip; or
 - pay the insurance premium.

And ends at the earlier of:

- Your departure by Flight for Your Overseas or Domestic Trip; or
- Policy Inception Date as shown in Your Certificate of Insurance.
- 2. Cover under all other benefits starts at the earlier of:
 - Policy Inception Date as shown on Your Certificate of Insurance; or
 - when You leave from Your Home or Your usual place of stay in Your Country of Departure for Your departure by Flight for Your Overseas or Domestic Trip (but not earlier than 24 hours before Your scheduled departure time).

And ends at the earlier of:

- when You return to Your Home or Your usual place of stay in Your Country of Departure after Your Flight arrives at the Final Destination (but not later than 24 hours after Your scheduled arrival time); or
- Policy Expiry Date as shown on Your Certificate of Insurance.

Coverage during Your Period of Insurance for policies purchased with a Hotel Stay only:

- 1. Cover for Trip Cancellation & Postponement (wherever applicable) starts at the later of:
 - the time You book Your Trip; or
 - pay the insurance premium.

And ends at the earlier of:

- Your arrival and check-in for Your Hotel Stay; or
- Policy Inception Date as shown in Your Certificate of Insurance.
- 2. Cover under all other benefits starts at the earlier of:
 - Policy Inception Date as shown on Your Certificate of Insurance; or
 - when You leave from Your Home or Your usual place of stay in Your Country of Departure for Your departure for Your Overseas or Domestic Trip provided You are in direct transit to Your Hotel for Your pre-booked Hotel Stay (but not earlier than 24 hours before Your scheduled check-in time for Your Hotel Stay).

And ends at the earlier of:

- when You return to Your Home or Your usual place of stay in Your Country of Departure (but not later than 24 hours after Your scheduled check-out time of Your Hotel Stay); or
- Policy Expiry Date as shown on Your Certificate of Insurance.

(Except for **Delayed Baggage** where **Your** inward journey to **Your Home** or **Your** usual place of stay in **Your Country of Departure** is not covered)

Coverage during Your Period of Insurance for policies purchased with a Car Rental only:

- 1. Cover for Trip Cancellation & Postponement (wherever applicable) starts at the later of :
 - the time You book Your Trip; or
 - pay the insurance premium.

And ends at the earlier of:

- when You pick-up Your Rental Vehicle; or
- Policy Inception Date as shown in Your Certificate of Insurance.
- 2. Cover under all other benefits starts at the later of:

- when You_pick-up Your Rental Vehicle; or
- Policy Inception Date as shown on Your Certificate of Insurance.

And ends at the earlier of:

- when You drop-off Your Rental Vehicle; or
- Policy Expiry Date as shown on Your Certificate of Insurance.

Coverage during Your Period of Insurance for policies purchased with Travel Itineraries with multiple types of Trip:

In the event a **Trip** includes a **Flight** with a **Hotel Stay** and/or **Car Rental**, the coverage during **Your Period of Insurance** follows that of the **Flight** except the benefit of **Section K – Collision Damage Protection** (where applicable), coverage for which ends at the earlier of:

 when You drop-off Your Rental Vehicle; or Policy Expiry Date as shown on Your Certificate of Insurance

Trip extensions if You are unable to complete Your Trip as planned due to a covered event:

If, due to unexpected circumstances beyond Your control arising from or relating to a covered event as set out in coverage sections — Section A to Section L (for example, Serious Illness or Injury, or unavoidable delays affecting Your return Flight or Covered Transport), Your Trip cannot be completed within the Period of Insurance outlined in Your Certificate of Insurance, cover will be extended for You at no extra cost for up to seven (7) days. This also applies to one (1) person travelling with You who is authorised by Us to stay with You if the extension is due to medical reasons. All requests for more than seven (7) days must be authorised by Us and We may charge premium as applicable.

It is a condition of this extension cover that **You** must make every endeavour to return to **Your Home** at the first available opportunity.

Your Right To Complain

We believe You deserve courteous, fair and prompt service. If there is any occasion when Our service does not meet Your expectations please contact Us using the contact details below, providing the policy/Claim number and the name of the Policyholder/Insured Person to help Us address Your comments quickly.

Customer Relations

Address: 120 Bremner Boulevard, Suite 2200, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5J 0A8

Canada & Continental USA: 866-591-5452 (toll free)

International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

Email: <u>CA.expcustsvc@aig.com</u>

We take pride in providing exemplary service to our policyholders. This quality service earns and maintains the trust and loyalty of **Our** customers.

The purpose of **Our** Complaint Resolution Policy (CRP)) is to set up a free and equitable procedure for dealing with complaints.

This **CRP** is also intended to provide oversight for the receipt of complaints, delivery of acknowledgements of receipt, creation of complaint files, compilation of complaints for the purpose of preparing and filing periodic reports with provincial regulators, and (in Québec) the transfer of complaint files to the Autorité des marchés financiers ("AMF").

If **You** have a complaint, **You** are encouraged to first contact **Us** at +1-416-621-6820 or toll free at 866-591-5452 (for all other provinces). **You** may also contact them via email at <u>CA.expcustsvc@aig.com</u>. The above individuals will work to obtain a solution that may be acceptable in resolving **Your** complaint.

If **Our** Travel Guard representatives are unable to resolve **Your** issue and **You** wish to have the **Insurer** further review **Your** complaint, **You** may contact **Us** verbally or in writing. If **You** know the name of the representative of the relevant business unit, please contact that person directly. If **You** are unsure of whom to contact **Our** Travel Guard representatives may provide **You** with the appropriate contact information.

The representative assigned to **Your** file will send **You** an acknowledgement of receipt within three (3) business days of receiving the complaint, highlighting information pertinent to the complaint. On receiving the complaint, the representative will initiate the complaint examination process. A complaint file is created for each complaint, which will contain details of the respective complaint, the outcome of the complaint examination process (the analysis and the supporting documents), and all written correspondences to the complainant. The representative will examine the complaint and, within ten (10) business days of receipt of the complaint, prepare and send a written response to **You** with justifying reasons, or explaining that more time is necessary and why.

If the representative is unable to resolve Your concern, You may request that the complaint be escalated to senior management of the business unit for their attention and further efforts to resolve the complaint.

In order to consult the full complaints handling policy please go to www.travelguard.ca

ABOUT THIS POLICY

Maximum Trip Duration

Single Trip

This policy gives You cover to travel on one (1) Trip within the Period of Insurance up to ninety (90) consecutive days

Age Limits

The minimum age for cover under this policy is:

- (i) fourteen (14) days from birth for all benefits except Section K Collision Damage Protection
- (ii) twenty-five (25) years for Section K Collision Damage Protection

The maximum age for cover under this policy is:

- (i) sixty-five (65) years inclusive if Section B1 Emergency Medical Expenses is included in this policy, or
- (ii) seventy-five (75) years inclusive if Section B1 Emergency Medical Expenses is not included in this policy.
- (iii)seventy (70) years for Section K Collision Damage Protection

Both the minimum and maximum ages are determined based on the Policy Inception Date.

Please note: Some benefits may have a reduced amount payable based on age. Please refer to the Table of Benefits for further information.

Cancellations And Refunds

Your right to cancel the policy within fifteen (15) days of purchase

If this cover is not suitable for **You** and **You** want to cancel **Your** policy, **You** must contact **Expedia** using the information provided below within fifteen (15) days of buying **Your** policy or the date **You** receive **Your** policy documents, whichever is later, provided **Your Trip** has not commenced. In line with the conditions below, **Your** premium will be refunded within fifteen (15) business days from the date **Your** request for cancellation is acknowledged and confirmed by **Expedia**. **Your premium** will not be refunded if **You** have travelled or made a **Claim** before **You** asked to cancel the policy within the fifteen (15) day period.

Expedia Customer Support Phone: Local toll free 800 469 1793

Call from abroad, charges apply +1 417 521 0859

Expedia Customer Support Portal: https://www.expedia.ca/service

Our right to cancel the policy

We have the right to cancel this policy by giving at least thirty (30) days' notice in writing to **You** at **Your** last known address if **We** have serious grounds for doing so, including any fraud, deliberate misstatement or hidden information by **You** or any assignment or transfer of this policy without **Our** written agreement or non-payment of premium.

A proportionate refund of the premium paid will be made to **You** from the date **We** cancel the policy. However, in event of fraud, deliberate misstatement or hidden information by **You** or non-payment of premium, no refund would be applicable.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

General Information

Your travel insurance

This policy wording along with **Your Certificate of Insurance** and any appropriate endorsements forms the basis of **Your** contract of insurance with **Us**. Together, these documents explain and detail what **You** are covered for and what **You** are not covered for

Please read this policy wording to make sure that the cover meets **Your** needs and please check the details outlined in **Your Certificate of Insurance** and any applicable endorsements to make sure that the information shown is correct.

Importance of Your Disclosures

You have a duty to take reasonable care not to make a misrepresentation when purchasing this policy, to answer all questions fully and accurately and to disclose any matter that You know to be relevant to Us in accepting the risks and determining the rates and terms to be applied. Failure to do so may void the policy or result in refusal or reduction of a Claim, change of terms or termination of this policy. This duty of disclosure shall continue until the time this policy is entered into or amended. You also have a duty to tell Us immediately if at any time after this policy has been entered into or amended with Us, if any of the information given for this policy at the time of purchase is inaccurate or has changed.

If **You** or any person to be covered under this policy suffers a new medical or dental event or **Your** general state of health deteriorates after **You** have purchased this policy, but before **Your** departure for **Your Trip**, **You** must contact **Us**, otherwise the consequences of **Your** change in health may not be covered under the Policy once **Your Trip** commences. In such circumstances, **We** reserve the right to review the cover granted including withdrawing or amending cover previously approved for the **Trip**.

Insurance provider:

Insurance is underwritten by AIG Insurance Company of Canada, 120 Bremner Boulevard, Suite 2200, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5J 0A8. The policy is administered on AIG Insurance Company of Canada's behalf by Travel Guard Group Canada, Inc. (Travel Guard Canada).

Assistance Services are provided by Travel Guard (Assistance Company)

Law and jurisdiction

Limitation of Action - Every action or proceeding against an Insurer for the recovery of insurance money payable under the contract is absolutely barred unless commenced within the time set out in the *Insurance Act* (for actions or proceedings governed by the laws of Alberta and British Columbia). The Insurance Act (for actions or proceedings governed by the laws of Manitoba), *the Limitations Act*, 2002 (for actions or proceedings governed by the laws of Ontario), or other applicable legislations.

Statutory Conditions – Despite any other provision contained in the contract, the contract is subject to the statutory conditions in the *Insurance Act* respecting contracts of accident and sickness insurance. This condition does not apply in the province of Quebec.

How We use personal information

We abide by the Privacy Principles of the AIG Insurance Company of Canada and want **You**, **Our** policyholders, Insureds and claimants (referred to as "Customers" or "You"), to be aware of how and why **We** handle personal information. **We** work hard to respect and maintain **Your** privacy. However, the very nature of **Our** business is such that the collection, use and disclosure of personal information is fundamental to the products and services **We** provide.

For the purposes of the Privacy Principles, personal information means information about identifiable individual. For example: an individual's name, birth date, address, age, health and financial information is personal information which **We** may collect, use and in certain circumstances, where necessary, disclose, in the course of providing insurance services and carrying on business. By applying for or purchasing AlG's products and services, **You** are providing **Your** consent to **Our** collection, use, and disclosure of **Your** personal information for insurance purposes and carrying on business, as set out in the Privacy Principles.

You may obtain a copy of the Privacy Principles on Our website at www.travelguard.ca.

Marketing communications - We will not send You any marketing communications, unless You expressly ask Us to. We will still send You other important communications, e.g. communications relating to administration of Your insurance policy or claim

Sharing of personal information – In the event of an accident, **Injury** or sickness, **Your** prior medical history may be reviewed when a claim is made. The assistance company, on behalf of the underwriter, requires information for medical insurance claims purposes, including but not limited to, determining the validity of coverage and coordinating benefits under other insurance coverage. To protect the confidentiality of personal information, the assistance company will establish a claim file to which access will be restricted to authorized employees and agents of the underwriter, its reinsurers and to persons authorized by law.

International transfer – due to the global nature of **Our** business, personal information may be transferred to parties located in the United States with different data protection laws than in Canada.

Security and retention of personal information – appropriate legal and security measures are used to protect personal information. **Our** service providers are selected carefully and required to use appropriate protective measures. Personal information will be retained for the period necessary to fulfil the purposes described above.

Policy corrections or questions – upon receipt of **Your** policy documents it is **Your** responsibility to review **Your** information to ensure it is accurate. Should any information be incorrect **You** must contact **Us**, at the number below, right away so that **We** can make the necessary corrections. Or should **You** have any questions **You** can call and speak to a licensed representative.

Cancellation Plan, Protection Plan, Basic Trip Protection, Trip Protection Plus, Premier Trip Protection Residents of Quebec only

Toll Free: 1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Residents of other provinces

Toll Free: 866-591-5452

International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

Collision Damage Plan (Car rental) - All provinces

Toll free: 1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Hours of Operation:

Monday to Friday - 7.00 am to 7.00 pm Central except public holidays

Before You Travel

Health Conditions

Your Health

This policy contains conditions relating to how **Your** current health may limit **Your** insurance coverage. In particular, some claims may not be covered if you have certain medical conditions. Please refer to **General Exclusions** for further information.

Health of Your Relatives and Travelling Companions

This policy contains conditions relating to how Your Relatives and Your Travelling Companions' health may limit Your

insurance coverage. In particular, some claims may not be covered if they have certain medical conditions. Please refer to **General Exclusions** for further information.

Sports And Activities

This policy contains conditions relation to **Your** participation in certain sports or activities which may limit **Your** insurance coverage. In particular, some claims may not be covered if **You** participate in certain sports or activities. Please refer to **General Exclusions** for further information.

Important Notices for Canadian Residents

To be eligible to purchase insurance:

- You must be a Canadian Resident at the time Your Policy is purchased and remain a Canadian Resident for the full duration of Your Trip; and
- 2. You must be covered under Your Government Health Insurance Plan (GHIP) for the full duration of Your Trip to be eligible for the maximum emergency medical benefits.

Beneficiary Designation and Change The Insured Person's beneficiary(ies) is (are) the person(s) designated by the Insured Person and on file with Us. If no beneficiary has been designated, payment will be made to the Insured Person's estate.

An **Insured Person**, over the age of majority and legally competent, may change his/her beneficiary designation at any time unless the beneficiary designation is irrevocable, without the consent of the designated beneficiary(ies), by providing **Us** a written request for change. When the request is received, whether the **Insured Person** is then living or not, the change of beneficiary will relate back to and take effect as of the date of execution of the written request, but without prejudice to the **Insurance Provider** on account of any payment made by it prior to receipt of the request.

Medical And Other Emergencies

The **Assistance Company** will provide help if **You** are ill, injured or die during **Your Trip**. They provide twenty-four (24) hour emergency service, 365 days a year. The contact details are as follows:

For Quebec, New Brunswick, Newfoundland, Saskatchewan residents Canada & Continental USA: 1-877-281-0082 (toll free)

International: +1-819-780-0646

For Other Provinces:

Canada & Continental USA: 866-591-5452 (toll free)

International: +1-416-621-6820

Please have the following information available when **You** (or someone on **Your** behalf) contact the **Assistance Company** so that **Your** case can be dealt with efficiently:

- Your name and address;
- Your contact phone number;
- Your policy number shown on Your Certificate of Insurance; and
- The name, address and contact phone number of Your Medical Practitioner.

Important Notes:

- 1. This is not private medical insurance. If You go into Hospital during Your Trip and You are likely to be kept as an inpatient for more than twenty-four (24) hours or if Your outpatient treatment is likely to cost more than CAD 500, You or someone acting on Your behalf must contact the Assistance Company as soon as reasonably possible. Failure to do so may limit Your insurance coverage.
- 2. If You have to return to Your Country of Residence under Section B1 Emergency Medical Expenses or Section D Trip Curtailment & Interruption, You or someone acting on Your behalf must contact the Assistance Company to make arrangements and receive authorisation. Failure to do so may limit Your insurance coverage.

Special note to US medical providers:

Please contact the Assistance Company through the contact information below. All claims and billing correspondence should be sent to the address listed below.

Travel Guard

For Quebec, New Brunswick, Newfoundland, Saskatchewan residents Canada & Continental USA: 1-877-281-0082 (toll free) International: +1-819-780-0646

international. • 1-019-700-00

Canada & Continental USA: 866-591-5452 (toll free)

International: +1-416-621-6820

CA.expassist@aig.com

For Other Provinces:

120 Bremner Boulevard, Suite 2200, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5J 0A8

Important Notes for Canadian Residents:

- 1. Your policy does not provide coverage for medical conditions and/or symptoms that existed before Your Trip. Check to see how this applies in Your Policy and how it relates to Your Policy Inception Date or date of purchase.
- 2. You must contact Us before seeking medical attention, and a failure to call will result in Your being responsible for 30% of any eligible expenses incurred, or no reimbursement, unless Your medical condition prevents You from calling. You must call as soon as medically possible or have someone call on Your behalf.
- 3. Our Assistance Company must approve in advance all surgery or invasive procedures (including, but not limited to, heart catheterization), prior to Your undergoing such procedure(s). It is Your responsibility to inform Your attending Medical Practitioner to call Us for approval in advance, except in extreme circumstances where such action would delay surgery required to resolve a life threatening medical emergency.
- 4. If You choose not to receive treatment or services from a medical provider as directed by Us, You may be responsible for 70% of any eligible expenses incurred.
- 5. Once You are deemed medically able to return to Your Home for a Domestic Trip or to Your Country of Residence (with or without a medical escort), either in the opinion of Our Assistance Company, or by virtue of discharge from Hospital, Your medical emergency is considered to have ended, Any further consultation, treatment, recurrence or complication related to the medical emergency will no longer be eligible for coverage under this policy.

How To Make A Claim

By paying the Premium for this insurance, You agree that:

- 1. We may verify Your Government Health Insurance Plan and other information required to process Your claim, with government and other authorities;
- 2. You authorize physicians, Medical Practitioners, Hospitals and other medical providers to provide to Us any and all information they have regarding You, while under observation or treatment, including Your medical history, diagnoses and test results;
- 3. We may disclose the information available under (1) and (2) above and from other sources to such other persons as may be required for the purposes of providing assistance about or processing Your claim for benefits; and
- 4. Failure to complete the required claim form and authorization form in full will delay the processing of Your claim and could invalidate Your claim. We cannot process Your claim in full until all required documentation has been received by Our claims department.

To claim for benefit section A - Trip Cancellation and Postponement (wherever applicable):

The Insured must:

a.notify **Us** on the same day or next business day in the event of a Trip Cancellation or Postponement claim. If the **Insured** is unable to provide cancellation notice within the required timeframe, the **Insured** must provide proof of the circumstance that prevented timely notification.

b.provide Us with documentation of the cancellation or interruption and proof of the expenses incurred.

We will notify **You** of a decision to approve or decline **Your** claim by phone followed by letter. The objective is to inform **You** of this decision within 15 business days upon receiving **Your** completed claim form and all original documents required to form a decision.

To Claim For benefit sections B1 - Emergency Medical Expenses, Section B2 - Emergency Medical Evacuation & Repatriation, Section B3 - Compassionate Visit, B4 - Emergency Dental and Section C - Hospital Income Overseas (wherever applicable):

You must notify Us at:

For New Brunswick, Newfoundland, Saskatchewan residents Canada & Continental USA: 1-877-281-0082 (toll free) International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

For Other Provinces:

Canada & Continental USA: 866-591-5452 (toll free)

International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

prior to any emergency medical treatment and prior to any surgery, invasive procedure or admission to a **Hospital**. **Our** assistance coordinators will provide guidance. **We** will make every effort, although **We** cannot guarantee, to pay **Hospitals**, **Medical Practitioners** and medical providers directly. **You** must provide **Us** with original receipts for incurred expenses including those for subsistence allowance expenses.

To claim for benefit section D - Trip Curtailment and Interruption (wherever applicable):

The Insured must

- a. contact **Us** as soon as **You** know **Your Trip** is going to be interrupted;
- b. provide **Us** with documentation of the curtailment or interruption and proof of the expenses incurred.
- c. provide proof of payment such as cancelled cheque or credit card statements, proof of refunds received, copies of applicable tour operator or **Common Carrier** cancellation policies, and any other information reasonably required to prove the loss.

To claim for benefit section F - Trip Delay (wherever applicable):

The Insured must

- a. contact **Us** as soon as he or she knows his or her **Trip** is going to be delayed more than six (6) hours.
- b. provide **Us** with documentation of the delay and proof of the expenses incurred.
- c. provide proof of payment such as cancelled cheque or credit card statements, proof of refunds received, copies of applicable tour operator or **Common Carrier** cancellation policies, and any other information reasonably required to prove the loss.

To claim for benefit section G1 - Personal Belongings & Baggage (wherever applicable):

You must notify **Us** immediately of the loss or damage to baggage or personal effects. You must also report the loss or damage to police, local or conveyance authorities, tour operator representatives, the hotel manager or official transportation representative and obtain a written report.

You must also submit a letter of coverage or denial from the transportation carrier and/or Your homeowner's insurance company. As proof of loss value, We may, at Our option, request original receipts, credit card original receipts or sales slips for all lost or stolen articles claimed.

Payment of Claims: To Whom Paid: Benefits are payable to the Insured who purchased the coverage and paid any required plan cost. Any benefits payable due to that Insured's death will be paid to the survivors of the first surviving class of those that follow:

- a. the beneficiary named by that Insured and on file with Us;
- b. his or her Partner, if living;
- c. If no living Partner, the Insured's estate.

Important note:

- 1. Non-medical claims, such as trip cancellation, lost baggage, trip delay, etc. can be submitted by registering Your claim online through Our Claims Portal https://claims.travelguard.com/myclaim/ca
- 2. Claims for the following sections should be notified to Us only through Our Assistance Company by phone:

 - Section B1 Emergency Medical Expenses
 Section B2 Emergency Medical Evacuation & Repatriation
 - Section B3 Compassionate Visit
 - Section B4 Emergency Dental
 - Section C Hospital Income Overseas

Emergency Assistance for Quebec, New Brunswick, Newfoundland, Saskatchewan Residents

Phone: +1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Emergency Assistance For Residents of Other Provinces

Phone: 1-866-591-5452

International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

For further details about claims, please refer to General Conditions.

General Definitions

Wherever the following words or phrases appear in bold in this policy, they will have the following meanings:

Accident or Accidental means a sudden, unexpected, involuntary and specific event, external to the body, which occurs at an identifiable time and place.

Assistance Company means the AIG assistance provider or a third party assistance provider referenced in the Important Information section of this document.

Canadian Resident /Resident means an Insured Person who has a provincial or territorial government health care plan in place and:

- 1. is a Canadian citizen with a primary permanent residence in Canada; or,
- 2 has landed immigrant status in Canada and a primary permanent residence in Canada; or,
- 3. has a permit to study or work in Canada.

Car Rental means the reservation or rental of a Rental Vehicle for short periods of time, generally ranging from a few hours to a few weeks for a fee.

Certificate of Insurance means the summary document showing details of the insurance coverage, which should be read with this policy.

Child means a person(s) who is 17 years of age or under.

Chronic means any condition that persists, or is expected to persist for longer than a year and after that time is likely to recur. These include but are not limited to: arthritis, cardiovascular disorders, cancer (carcinoma / carcinoma in situ / malignant tumors), epilepsy, haemophilia, lupus, motor neuron disease, multiple sclerosis disease, muscular dystrophy, Parkinson's disease, renal-kidney disease, respiratory disorder.

Civil Unrest, Riot or Commotion means a gathering of persons (organised or unorganised) in disturbance of the public peace with the presence of violence, threats of violence, or the action of any lawfully constituted authority to suppress or attempt to suppress any such gathering.

Claim means a request by You to Us to avail of the range of benefits that are available under this policy.

Common Carrier means a commuter bus, ferry, hovercraft, hydrofoil, train, tram, and any fixed-wing aircraft:

- 1. authorised pursuant to any statute, regulation, law or equivalent for the transportation of fare paying passengers;
- 2. which operates to fixed, established and regular schedules and routes.

It does not mean:

- a. any such conveyance if chartered or arranged as part of a tour even if such services are regularly scheduled; or
- b. taxis, ride sharing services or cruise ships

Covered Transport means any land, water or air conveyance operating under a valid license for conveyance of fare paying passengers and which operates to fixed, established and regular schedules and routes.

Country of Departure means the country from which You first departed for Your Trip as per Your Travel Itinerary (for

example, the country from which **Your** first **Flight** is originally scheduled to depart or the country from which **You** travelled to collect **Your Rental Vehicle** or to check-into **Your Hotel**).

Country of Residence means any country in which You have been granted rights of citizenship or are a Resident with unrestricted right of re-entry by the respective Government Authority.

Dental Treatment Expenses means the necessary and reasonable expenses incurred and paid to a **Dental Practitioner** for dental treatment carried out by a **Dental Practitioner**. All treatment including specialist treatment must be prescribed or referred by a **Dental Practitioner** in order for expenses to be reimbursed under this policy, and such reimbursement will not exceed the usual level of charges for similar treatment, dental services or supplies in the location where the expenses were incurred and paid, had this insurance not existed.

Dental Practitioner means a registered and properly qualified dental practitioner licensed under any applicable laws and acting within the scope of his/her license and training. The attending **Dental Practitioner** cannot be **You**, **Your Relative**, business associate, employer, employee or **Travelling Companion**.

Domestic Trip means travel undertaken by **You** during the **Period of Insurance** for the purpose of leisure and/or business travel which is:

- 1. within Your Country of Residence;
- 2. beyond 100 kilometres from your Home; and
- 3. excludes any commute to and from Your regular place of employment or work.

Expedia means Expedia, Inc. and its subsidiaries and corporate affiliates, as applicable.

Expedition means any journey to high risk, remote, inaccessible and/or inhospitable locations including but not limited to, privately organised kayaking trips around the coast of a country, or trips to generally inaccessible interiors of a country or areas previously unexplored or unchartered including trips undertaken for scientific, research or political purposes to such locations. It does not mean **Trekking** and travel outside of such locations if (a) such **Trekking** or travel is part of a tour that is accessible to the general public without restrictions (other than general health or fitness warnings) and is run by a recognised tour operator; and (b) **You** are always acting under the guidance and supervision of qualified guides and/or instructors of the tour operator.

Extreme Sports and Sporting Activities means any sport or sporting activities that present a high level of inherent danger (i.e. involve a high level of expertise, exceptional physical exertion, highly specialised gear or stunts) including but not limited to big wave surfing; **Winter Sports** (except as noted in (b) below); bicycle, motor, air or sea craft speed trials or stunts, canoeing down rapids, cliff jumping, horse jumping, horse polo and stunts, boxing and martial arts. **Extreme Sports and Sporting Activities** does not include:

- a) Tourist activities that are accessible to the general public without restrictions (other than general health/fitness warnings) and are run by a recognised resort or tour operator, provided that **You** comply with all relevant requirements/instructions of such resort/tour operator and with all safety guidelines for the activity concerned, including the use of any appropriate and recommended safety equipment.
- b) Skiing, snowboarding, cross country skiing, ice curling, ice skating, ice hockey, langlauf and sledging/sleighing/ tobogganing, but only if **You** engage in such **Winter Sports** (i) as tourist activities (subject to the conditions in (a) above), and (ii) on prepared ice rinks, recognised and prepared paths or marked trails of the resort.

Final Destination means Your last destination specified in Your Travel Itinerary; You are deemed to arrive at Your Final Destination when Your Flight arrives at the airport there or when You first reach Your x planned arrival point there.

Financial Default means insolvency, bankruptcy, provisional liquidation, liquidation, financial collapse, appointment of a receiver, manager or administrator, entry into any official or unofficial scheme of arrangement, statutory protection, restructuring or composition with creditors, or the happening of anything of a similar nature under the laws of any jurisdiction.

Flight means an air journey in a commercial, scheduled aircraft in which You are a fare paying passenger.

Flood means a general and temporary covering of water of two (2) or more acres of normally dry land.

Home means an Insured Person's usual place of residence within Your Country of Residence.

Hospital means an establishment constituted and registered as a facility for the care and treatment of sick and injured persons and which:

- 1. has full facilities for diagnosis and surgical procedures;
- 2. provides twenty-four (24) hour a day nursing services by registered graduate nurses;
- 3. is supervised by a staff of Medical Practitioners; and
- 4 is not primarily a clinic, nursing, rest or convalescent home, a home for the aged, a place for the treatment of alcoholism or drug addiction or an institution for mental or behavioural disorder.

Hotel means any commercial establishment used for the purpose of short term or overnight lodging for which a fee is paid and reservations are required.

Hotel Stay means Your reserved stay in a Hotel for a fee.

Illness means a physical condition marked by a pathological deviation from the normal healthy state.

Injury means a physical bodily injury sustained by **You** as a result of an **Accident** during the **Trip** which occurs solely, directly and independently of any other cause or causes including sickness, disease or any pre-existing physical or congenital condition, except sickness directly resulting from medical or surgical treatment rendered necessary by such **Injury**.

Insurance Provider means the company issuing this policy, which may include subsidiaries or affiliates of American International Group, Inc., and appointed network partners as applicable.

Insured Person means the person or persons shown on the Certificate of Insurance or, in the case of a standalone Hotel

Stay, the person or persons included in the number of adults and Children submitted through an Expedia website and registered with the Hotel.

Main Travel Destination means any location, temporary or otherwise, to which **You** travel during **Your Trip** if it is proven to **Our** satisfaction that a covered event in one (1) or more of these locations would impact **Your Trip** to the extent that it needs to be necessarily cancelled or interrupted as the relevant policy section provides.

Manual Labour means Your active personal participation in work which involves physical labour or manual operation, including but not limited to:

- (a)underground work, mining work, military duties, offshore work, manual agricultural labour, construction work, or outside building or installation work exceeding three (3) metres in height;
- (b) work that involves heavy machinery, explosives or hazardous materials
- (c) work as a diver, life guard, taxi driver, bus driver, or other commercial vehicle or heavy vehicle driver, dispatch rider or delivery person; o
- (d)work of a manual nature that involves specialist equipment and training, or work that presents risk of serious injury including but not limited to oil riggers, fishermen, crane operators or welders.

Medical Practitioner means a registered and properly qualified medical specialist licensed under applicable laws and acting within the scope of his/her license and training. The attending **Medical Practitioner** cannot be **You**, **Your Relative**, business associate, employer, employee or **Travelling Companion**

Medically Necessary means a medical service provided by a Medical Practitioner which is:

- 1 consistent with the diagnosis and is a customary medical treatment for the covered Illness and/or Injury;
- 2. in accordance with standards of good medical practice, consistent with current standards of professional medical care and of proven medical benefits;
- 3. not for the convenience of You or the Medical Practitioner;
- 4. unable to be rendered out of a Hospital (if admitted as an inpatient);
- 5. not experimental, investigational, research, preventive or screening in nature; and
- 6. for which charges are reasonable, customary and do not exceed the general level of charges being made by others of similar standing in the locality where the charge is incurred, when furnishing like or comparable treatment, services or supplies to individuals of the same sex and of comparable age for a similar Illness and/or Injury in accordance with accepted medical standards and practice that could not have been omitted without adversely affecting Your Illness and/or Injury.

Natural Catastrophe means any of the following - volcanic eruption, Flood, tsunami, earthquake, landslide, hurricane, tornado or wildfire.

Natural Disaster and Extreme Weather Conditions means any **Natural Catastrophe**, typhoon, cyclone, volcanic ash, mudslide, avalanche, fire, or blizzard that is due to natural causes.

Mountaineering means ascent or descent of a mountain ordinarily necessitating the use of specified equipment, including but not limited to, crampons, pickaxes, anchors, bolts, carabineers and lead-rope or top-rope anchoring equipment.

Overseas means beyond the territorial limits of Your Country of Departure or Country of Residence as applicable depending on the country from where You originally depart as per Your Travel Itinerary, but in no circumstance includes Your Country of Residence.

Pair or Set of Items means items of personal property which belong together and cannot be worn or used or work separately for the purpose intended (for example, a pair of earrings).

Parent means a person with parental responsibility for a Child, including a legal guardian acting in that capacity.

Partner means a person who is an Insured Person's spouse, civil or domestic partner, fiancé or fiancée who permanently lives at the same address as the Insured Person.

Period of Insurance means the period commencing with the Policy Inception Date and terminating with the Policy Expiry Date as defined on the Certificate of Insurance. (For details on specific coverage periods applicable to each benefit section, please see section Coverage during Your Period of Insurance.)

Policyholder means the person who has paid for this policy and is shown on the Certificate of Insurance.

Policy Inception Date means the date on which Your policy will commence as stated in Your Certificate of Insurance.

Policy Expiry Date means the date on which Your policy will terminate as stated in Your Certificate of Insurance.

Pre-existing Medical Condition means:

- (a) any illness, disease or injury suffered by You, Your Relative, business associate, or Travelling Companion which in the one (1) year period before You purchased this insurance for benefit Section A - Trip Cancellation & Postponement, or before the Policy Inception Date for other benefits.
 - (i) first manifested itself, worsened, became acute or exhibited symptoms that would have caused an ordinarily prudent person to seek diagnosis, care or treatment;
 - (ii)required taking prescribed drugs or medicine, or tests, or further investigation had been recommended by a **Medical Practitioner**; or
 - (ii)was treated by a Medical Practitioner, or treatment had been recommended by a Medical Practitioner.
- (b) any congenital, hereditary, Chronic or ongoing condition of Yours, Your Relative, business associates, or Travelling Companion which You or they are aware of, or could reasonably be expected to be aware of, before You purchased this insurance for benefit Section A Trip Cancellation & Postponement, or before the Policy Inception Date for other benefits.

Public place means any place where the public has general access rights and shall include but is not limited to shops, airports (including airport lounges), train stations, bus stations, streets, hotel foyers and grounds, function, exhibition or

conference centres, restaurants, beaches and public toilets.

Quarantine means a restriction on movement or travel placed by an official governmental body or health authority, in order to stop the spread of an epidemic or pandemic related communicable disease.

Rental Vehicle means a motor vehicle rented or hired by You from a licensed Car Rental agency for the carriage of nonfare paying passengers and does not include:

- 1. any vehicle designed to be used for the carriage of commercial goods;
- 2. any vehicle which is classed as a campervan, motor home or any other vehicle that is used for both accommodation and transportation purposes;
- 3 any vehicle that is categorised as a non-passenger carrying motorcar, including but not limited to, motorcycles, racing cars, watercraft and aircraft of any type.

Relative means **Your Partner**, parents, **Your Partner**'s parents, **Child**, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, grandparent, grandparent, grandparent, brother, sister, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, step-parent, stepdaughter, stepson, step-brother, step-sister, niece, nephew, aunt or uncle.

Serious Illness or Injury means:

- 1. in respect of the **Insured Person**, a condition which necessitates treatment by a **Medical Practitioner** who certifies that as a direct result of this condition the **Insured Person** requires urgent medical attention and is unfit to commence the **Trip** or continue on with the **Trip** as originally scheduled; and
- 2. in respect of any other person whose health may affect **Your** entitlement to coverage under this policy, such person is hospitalised and the attending **Medical Practitioner** certifies that their life is in imminent danger necessitating **Your** immediate attendance.

Strike means any organised, wilful refusal by workers or employees to continue working to register a protest, or the action of any lawfully constituted authority in preventing or attempting to prevent any such act or in minimising the consequences of such act.

Terrorist means any person who commits, or attempts to commit, a **Terrorist Act** or who participates in or facilitates the commission of a **Terrorist Act** and/or is verified or recognised or designated by any government or authority as a terrorist.

Terrorist Act means any actual or threatened use of force or violence directed at or causing damage, injury, harm or disruption, or committing of an act dangerous to human life or property, against any individual, property or government, with the stated or unstated objective of pursuing economic, ethnic, nationalistic, political, racial or religious interests, whether such interests are declared or not. Robberies or other criminal acts, primarily committed for personal gain and acts arising primarily from prior personal relationships between perpetrator(s) and victim(s) are not considered terrorist acts. A **Terrorist Act** also includes any act which is verified or recognised by the (relevant) government as an act of terrorism.

Travelling Companion means a person or persons with whom **You** have coordinated travel arrangements and with whom **You** intend to travel for at least 80% of **Your Trip** duration, and without whom **You** reasonably would not undertake the **Trip**.

Travel Itinerary means the Flight/Flights, Hotel Stay/Stays, and/or Car Rental that You booked under a single payment transaction through an Expedia website, for which You purchased this policy.

Trekking means an overnight hike, tramp, trek or similar activity through mountainous terrain, national parks or reserve lands normally undertaken on foot but which also can be by other means, including but not limited to, by animal or off-road vehicle, and which involves an overnight stay in the wilderness including in campsites, huts and lodges. For the purpose of clarity, it does not mean **Mountaineering**.

Trip means Your Overseas trip or Domestic trip as stated in Your Travel Itinerary.

Unattended means when **You** do not have full view of **Your** property or where **You** are not in a position to prevent the unauthorised taking of **Your** property, unless it is left in a locked room or a locked safety deposit facility. Property left in a motor vehicle is considered to be **Unattended** unless the motor vehicle is locked and the property is out of view in an enclosed storage compartment, boot / car trunk or luggage space.

Valuables and Electronic/Other Equipment means photographic, audio, video, electronic, electrical equipment, media (including CDs, DVDs, video and audio tapes and electronic games), MP3 players, computer equipment (but not mobile or smart phones or tablet computers), binoculars, antiques, jewellery, watches, furs, silks, precious stones and articles made of or containing gold, silver or precious metals.

War means military action, either between nations or resulting from civil war or revolution.

Winter Sports means bigfoot skiing, cat skiing or boarding, cross country skiing, glacier skiing, glacier walking, heli-skiing, ice climbing, ice curling, ice diving, ice hockey, ice skating, kite skiing, kite snowboarding, langlauf, mono skiing, off piste skiing or snowboarding, skiing, ski or snow board jumping or stunts, ski/snow biking, ski/snow blading, ski randonee, ski touring, sledging/sleighing, snowboarding, snowboarding, speed skating and tobogganing, bobsleighing, luge or skeleton, or tobogganing on an ice track.

We, Us, Our means the Insurance Provider that issued this policy.

You, Your, Yourself means the Policyholder and/or an Insured Person as named in the Certificate of Insurance.

General Conditions

General Conditions apply to all sections of this policy. In addition to these **General Conditions**, please also refer to the 'Specific conditions applicable to Section' under each policy section as this sets out further conditions which apply to that policy section:

- 1. You must tell **Us** if **You** know about anything that may affect **Our** decision to accept **Your** insurance (for example, if **You** are planning to take part in a dangerous activity while **You** are on **Your Trip**).
- You must take all reasonable steps to avoid or reduce any loss that may mean You have to make a Claim under this insurance.
- 3. You must give Our claims department all the documents they request to deal with any Claim. You will be responsible for the costs involved in doing this. For example, in the event of a cancellation Claim, You will need to supply proof that You were unable to travel, such as a medical certificate completed by Your Medical Practitioner.
- 4. You must help Us get back any money that We have paid from anyone or from other insurers by giving Us all the details We need and by filling in any forms.
- 5. Any fraud, deliberate misstatement or hiding of information in connection with the application for this policy or when making a Claim will make this policy invalid for the Insured Person who has committed the fraud, deliberate misstatement or hidden information. In this event, any benefit due to the Insured Person who has committed the fraud, deliberate misstatement or hiding of information under this policy will be forfeited and any benefit that has previously been paid to such Insured Person must be repaid to Us in full. We also will not refund any premium paid on behalf of the Insured Person who has committed the fraud, deliberate misstatement or hiding of information.
- An Insured Person seeking payment of a Claim must give Us permission to obtain any medical reports or records needed from any Medical Practitioner who has treated the Insured Person; otherwise We may not pay any Claim.
- 7. We may ask the Insured Person to attend one (1) or more medical examinations. If We do, We will pay the cost of the examination(s), any medical reports and records, and reasonable travelling expenses of the Insured Person and any person required to travel with the Insured Person to attend the examination, if these expenses are agreed by Us in advance. If the Insured Person fails to attend without reasonable cause, We may reject the Claim.
- 8. If an Insured Person dies, We have the right to ask for a post mortem examination at Our expense.
- 9. You must pay Us back any amounts that We have paid to You that are not covered by the insurance. This could include any overpayments and payments to which You are not entitled (for example, if Your Claim for lost luggage has been paid but Your suitcase is subsequently returned to You by the airline).
- 10 After a Claim has been settled, any damaged items which You have sent into Our claims department will become Our property.
- 11. This policy may not be assigned or transferred unless We agree in writing.
- 12. We will not pay any interest on any amount payable under this policy.
- 13. Where applicable, **We** will deal with **Claims** under benefit **Section H- Personal Accident** in respect of **Accidental** death as follows:
 - a. If an **Insured Person** is eighteen (18) years of age or over, any sums payable will be made to the executor or legal representative of the deceased **Insured Person's** estate.
 - b. If an **Insured Person** is seventeen (17) years of age, or under any sums payable will be made to a **Parent** of the deceased **Insured Person**.
- 14. We may also contact third parties who have or who were to provide services to the **Insured Person** (for example, an airline, travel company or hotel) to verify the information provided.
- 15. This policy may only be enforced by the following:
 - a. the Policyholder,
 - b. an Insured Person (or their Parent if they are seventeen (17) years of age or under),
 - c. the executor or legal representative in the event of the death of an Insured Person; or
 - d. Us.
- 16.We must be notified of all Claims as soon as is reasonably practicable after the event that causes the Claim. Failure to do so may result in Our rejection of the Claim if it is made so long after the event that We are unable to investigate it fully, or may result in You not receiving the full amount claimed if the amount claimed is increased as a result of the delay.

Important Notes for Canadian Residents:

In addition to the above conditions all of the following conditions apply to all coverage under this policy including any optional coverage purchased.

- 1. If Your health status changes (including a change in prescribed medication or treatment) prior to the Policy Inception Date for any Trip, You must notify Us immediately. Please refer to "Importance of Your Disclosure" under Important Information General Information.
- 2. The benefit, benefit limits and all other amounts expressed in this policy are expressed in Canadian currency. Where covered losses are billed in foreign currency, the rate of exchange is based on the rate effective on the date when We pay the claim. No sum payable shall bear interest. To facilitate direct payment to providers, We may elect to pay the claim in the currency of the country where the charges were incurred based on the rate of exchange established by any chartered bank in Canada:
 - a. on the last date of service; or
 - b. on the date the claim was incurred if a cheque is issued directly to **Medical Practitioners**, **Hospitals** or other medical providers.
- 3. The coverage outlined in this policy is last pay or only. If, at the time of loss, You have insurance from another source, or if any other party is also responsible, to pay for benefits also provided under this policy, We will pay eligible expenses only in excess of those covered by that other insurance company or insurance companies or other responsible party or parties, including insurance plans provided through credit cards, third party liability, group or individual basic or extended health insurance plans or contracts including any private or provincial or territorial auto insurance plan, providing Hospital, medical or therapeutic coverage, or any third party liability insurance in force concurrently with this policy. We have full rights of subrogation; however, We do not subrogate against any retiree plan benefit if the lifetime maximum limits for all in-country and out-of-country medical benefits is \$50,000 or less.
- 4. Notwithstanding any provision of this policy, this policy is subject to the statutory conditions of the *Insurance Act* applicable to contracts of *Accident and Sickness insurance* and the laws and regulations in **Your Home** province. The laws and regulations of the province or territory in Canada in which **You** normally reside govern this policy and any provision in this policy which is in conflict with any such statute is hereby amended to conform to such statute.

General Exclusions apply to all sections of this policy (with certain exceptions applicable to Section K - Collision Damage Protection, as set out in the Important Note at the end of this section). In addition to these General Exclusions, please also refer to 'What You are not covered for' under each policy section as this sets out further exclusions which apply to that policy section.

We will not be liable under any section of the policy for any Claim arising out of, based upon, relating to or attributable to:

- 1. Any Pre-Existing Medical Condition or any complication arising from it.*
- You travelling against the advice of a Medical Practitioner or for the purpose of obtaining medical advice or treatment.*
- 3. You or any person who Your Trip depends on are receiving or waiting for hospital investigation or treatment for any undiagnosed condition or set of symptoms or have been given a terminal prognosis at the time of purchasing this insurance and/or before commencing travel.*
- 4. Any claim relating to a set of circumstances of which You were aware at the time You took out this insurance or the time You booked Your Trip, whichever is later, and which could reasonably be expected to lead to a claim; examples of such circumstances may include, without limitation, the Serious Illness of a relative, or the existence of an epidemic or pandemic (as declared by the World Health Organization or by any official governmental body or health authority) either in Your Country of Departure or in a destination of Your Trip. This exclusion does not apply to Section B1 Emergency Medical Expenses and B2 Emergency Medical Evacuation & Repatriation, if, while You are on Your Trip outside Your Country of Residence, You are diagnosed with a communicable disease, the outbreak of which is declared as an epidemic or pandemic by the World Health Organization.
- 5. Any psychological or psychiatric disorder; stress, anxiety, depression, mental or nervous conditions; psychosis or any psychosomatic condition; or sleep disorders, unless hospitalized for that specific reason.
- 6. Any costs relating to pregnancy if You are more than 26 weeks pregnant at the start of or during Your Trip (including routine pre-natal care, childbirth), infertility, contraception or operations related to sterilisation or any complication arising therefrom except as provided under benefit Section A Trip Cancellation and Postponement (sub section A3 clause 9).*
- 7. War, civil war, invasion, revolution or any similar event.
- 8. Civil riots, blockades, **Strikes** or industrial action of any type (except for **Strikes** or industrial action which were not public knowledge when **You** booked **Your Trip** or purchased this insurance, whichever is the later) except as provided under benefit **Section A Trip Cancellation and Postponement** (sub section **A3 clause 1.d.**) and benefit **Section D Trip Curtailment & Interruption** (sub section **D3 clause 1.d.**).
- Loss, expense, liability or damage to any property, arising from ionising radiation or contamination by radioactivity from
 - a. any nuclear fuel or
 - b. any nuclear waste from
 - i. burning nuclear fuel or
 - ii. radioactive, toxic, explosive or
 - iii. other dangerous properties of any explosive nuclear equipment
- 10.Your use of a two-wheeled motor vehicle unless:*
 - a. as a passenger, You wear a crash helmet and it is reasonable for You to believe that the driver holds a licence to drive the two-wheeled motor vehicle under the laws of the country in which the Accident occurs (if such a licence is required under the laws of the country in which the Accident occurs); or
 - b. as a driver, You wear a crash helmet and You hold a licence which permits You to drive the two-wheeled motor vehicle under the laws of the country in which the Accident occurs (if such a licence is required under the laws of the country in which the Accident occurs).
- 11.A tour operator, airline or any other company, firm or person's becoming insolvent, or being unable or unwilling to fulfil any part of their obligation to **You**.
- 12. Travel to a specific country or area if, prior to Your Trip commencing, any official governmental body or health authority in Your Country of Residence has advised against all travel to that country or area except as provided under benefit Section A Trip Cancellation & Postponement(sub section A3 clause 7.) and benefit Section D Trip Curtailment & Interruption (sub section D3 clause 5.) if these benefits are covered in Your policy.
- 13. Your involvement in any deliberate, malicious, reckless, illegal or criminal act.
- 14. Your participation in the following high risk activities*
 - a. Extreme Sports And Sporting Activities;
 - b. competition sports;
 - c. any professional sports or any sport in which You would or could earn or receive remuneration, donation, sponsorship or financial rewards of any kind;
 - d. racing other than on foot (i.e. human);
 - e. Expeditions;
 - f. hunting trips and safaris that are not provided by a licensed commercial operator;
 - g. white water rafting grade four (4) or above;
 - h. sailing outside of territorial waters;
 - i. parachuting, BASE jumping, sky diving or travel in any other air supported device other than as a passenger in a licensed passenger aircraft operated by an airline or charter company. This exclusion does not apply to hot air ballooning or parasailing.
 - j. scuba diving unless:
 - i. You are diving for recreational purposes (for the purpose of clarity recreational diving does not include technical diving or diving as a professional diver);
 - ii. You are diving with a qualified dive instructor or dive master, or You hold a PADI certification or similar recognised certification and are diving within the level of Your certification (including maximum dive depths and bottom time) and to the standards and procedures set up by Your certifying agency;
 - iii. subject to (ii) above Your planned dive depth does not exceed forty (40) metres; and
 - iv. You are not diving alone;
- 15. Motor racing, rallying or vehicle racing of any kind.

- 16.Your participation in:*
 - a. Mountaineering:
 - b. adventure climbing including outdoor rock climbing or abseiling; or
 - c. high altitude activity or any activity above 5,500 metres or Trekking above 3,000 metres.

Exclusions 16(b) and 16(c) above will not apply to organised harnessed outdoor rock climbing, harnessed abseiling and **Trekking** that are:

- i. available to the general public without restriction, other than general health and fitness warnings;
- ii. provided by a recognised commercial local tour operator or activity provider;
- iii. provided under the guidance and supervision of qualified guides and/or instructors of the tour operator or activity provider and always subject to You following their advice and/or instruction; and
- iv.undertaken below 5,500 metres.
- 17. Your performing Manual Labour during Your Trip.*
- 18. Your suicide or attempted suicide;
- 19 Your injuring Yourself deliberately or putting Yourself in danger (unless You are trying to save a human life).
- 20.Your use of alcohol or drugs unless the drugs have been prescribed by a Medical Practitioner (whether the Claim arises directly or indirectly from Your use of alcohol or drugs)
- 21 Your being affected by any sexually transmitted disease or condition, unless hospitalized for that specific reason.*
- 22. Your failure to get the inoculations and vaccinations that You need in relation to Your Trip.*
- 23. Your acting in a way which goes against the advice of a Medical Practitioner.*
- 24. Any error or omission in Your booking arrangements made by You, Your travel agent or any other person acting on Your behalf.
- 25. The refusal, failure or inability of any person, company or organisation including any carrier or service provider to provide services, facilities or accommodation by reason of their own Financial Default or the Financial Default of any person, company or organisation with whom or with which they have business dealings.
- 26.Any claim arising from Quarantine or travel restrictions due to government orders, warnings, advisories, regulations, directives, prohibitions, or border closures, relating to an epidemic or pandemic (including, but not limited to, COVID-19 and any mutation, strain, or variation of COVID-19) as currently or at any previous time declared by the World Health Organization or by any official governmental body of health authority.

Additionally:

- 27. We will not be liable to pay any Claim if You already have a more specific insurance that provides cover (for example, if an item You are claiming for under benefit Section G1 Personal Belongings & Baggage is a specified item on Your household contents insurance policy).
- 28. This policy does not provide coverage for any indirect losses, costs, charges or expenses (meaning losses, costs, charges or expenses that are not listed under the headings 'What You are covered for' in Your Benefits Under this Policy section (for example, loss of earnings if You cannot work after You have been injured or the cost of replacement locks if Your keys are stolen).
- 29. This policy does not provide coverage for any costs which **You** would have had to or would have chosen to pay had the reason for the **Claim** not occurred (for example, the cost of food which **You** would have paid for in any case).
- 30. We will not be deemed to provide cover and we will not be liable to pay any Claim or provide any benefit hereunder to the extent that the provision of such cover, payment of such Claim or provision of such benefit would expose the Insurance Provider, its parent company or its ultimate controlling entity to any sanction, prohibition or restriction under United Nations resolutions or the trade or economic sanctions, laws or regulations of the European Union or the United States of America.
- 31. This policy will not cover any loss, **injury** damage or legal liability arising directly or indirectly from planned or actual travel in, to, or through Cuba, Iran, Syria, North Korea or the Crimea region.
- 32. This policy will not cover any loss, injury, damage or legal liability sustained directly or indirectly by any individual or entity identified on any applicable government watch list as a supporter of terrorism, narcotics or human trafficking, piracy, proliferation of weapons of mass destruction, organized crime, malicious cyber activity, or human rights abuses.
- 33. This policy offers coverage only to Canadian Residents and is null and void as to non-residents of Canada.

* Important Note:

The following clauses under the **General Exclusions** do not apply **to Section K – Collision Damage Protection**:

Clause 1, 2, 3, 6, 10, 14, 16, 17, 21, 22 and 23.

Your Benefits Under this Policy

Please refer to section Coverage during Your Period of Insurance for the applicable coverage period for each benefit section.

Section A – Trip Cancellation & Postponement

✓ What You are covered for under Section A

A1 – Trip Cancellation (Pre-departure): If it is necessary and unavoidable that You have to cancel Your Trip as a result of one (1) or more of the covered events listed under Section A3, We will pay up to the amount shown in the Table of Benefits for:

- travel and accommodation expenses for Your Trip purchased through an Expedia website and for which You opted to purchase insurance, which You have paid and are non-refundable;
- the cost of excursions, tours and activities purchased through an Expedia website which You have paid for and which is non-refundable; and
- the cost of entry visas required for Your Trip which You have paid for and which is non-refundable.

Important Note:

- 1. We will consider the covered expenses as refunded if such refund, provided by the relevant airline, transport company or service provider, is in the form of a cash refund or a voucher/credit note in lieu of a cash refund.
- 2. If payment has been made using frequent traveller points or vouchers issued by or accepted by Expedia and these are non-refundable, then settlement of Your Claim will be based on the value of the frequent traveller points or vouchers, as established by Expedia, which You cannot get back.
- 3. This Policy will end once a Claim has been paid for Section A1 Trip Cancellation (Pre-Departure), If You want coverage for Your altered / new trip, You must purchase a new policy.

A2 – Trip Postponement (Pre-departure): If it is necessary and unavoidable that You have to alter Your Trip as a result of one (1) or more of the covered events listed under Section A3, We will pay up to the amount shown in the Table of Benefits for:

• the reasonable and necessary additional costs incurred You paid to re-schedule Your Trip.

You can only submit a Claim under Section A1 or A2, not both. The amount We will pay You under Section A2 will not be more than the amount We would have paid under Section A1 above.

A3 - Covered Events

We will provide this cover if the cancellation or postponement of Your Trip is necessary and unavoidable as a result of the following:

- 1. Major travel events
 - a. Natural Disaster and Extreme Weather Conditions at Your Main Travel Destination(s);
 - b. major industrial or Covered Transport accident;
 - c. Civil Unrest, Riot or Commotion resulting in cancellation of scheduled Covered Transport services;
 - d. Strike resulting in cancellation of scheduled Covered Transport services; or
 - e. Airspace or multiple airport closures due to poor weather conditions (but not including weather conditions defined as **Natural Catastrophe**).
- 2. Your death, Serious Illness or Injury.
- 3. The death, Serious Illness or Injury of Your Relative, Travelling Companion or a Relative or friend living Overseas with whom You had planned to stay. The incident giving rise to the Claim must have been unexpected and not something You were aware of when You purchased this insurance. Please see the General Exclusion for further details.
- 4. Your being made redundant, as long as You had been working at Your current place of employment for a minimum continuous period of two (2) years, and at the time of booking the Trip or the date You purchased this insurance cover, whichever is earlier, You had no reason to believe that You would be made redundant. This cover does not apply if You are self-employed or accept voluntary redundancy.
- 5. You or Your Travelling Companion being called for jury service (and Your request to postpone Your service has been rejected) or attending court as a witness (but not as an expert witness).
- 6. If the police or relevant authority needs You to stay in Your Country of Residence after a fire, storm, Flood, burglary or vandalism to Your Home or place of business within seven (7) days before You planned to leave on Your Trip.
- 7. If after the time You booked Your Trip, an official governmental body of Your Country of Residence or Country of Departure issues an advisory against travel to the city listed on Your Travel Itinerary. However, there is no cover under this section if such advisory is issued due to an epidemic or pandemic.
- 8. If You are a member of the armed forces, police, fire, ambulance services, or a licensed medical professional and You receive an official directive which results in Your having to cancel or postpone Your Trip due to an unforeseen emergency.
- 9. If You become pregnant after the date You purchased this insurance cover and You will be more than 26 weeks pregnant at the start of or during Your Trip. Or, if You become pregnant after the date You purchased this insurance cover and Your Medical Practitioner advises that You are not fit to travel due to complications in Your pregnancy.

* What You are not covered for under Section A

In addition to the exclusions set out in the **General Exclusions** section, this policy does not cover loss or damage arising out of, based upon or attributable to:

- 1. Trip Cancellation and Postponement caused by:
 - a. a Pre-Existing Medical Condition. Please see General Exclusions for further details.
 - b. Quarantine-related travel restrictions. Please see General Exclusions for further details.
- 2. Your not wanting to travel.
- 3. Any extra costs resulting from Your not telling a travel company as soon as You know You have to cancel or postpone Your trip.
- 4. Your being unable to travel due to Your failure to obtain the passport or entry visa You need for the Trip.
- 5. Airport taxes and credit or debit card fees included in the cost of Your Trip.
- 6. Costs that have not been incurred by or on behalf of an Insured Person.
- 7. Any costs **You** would have still had to pay even if **You** had not been due to travel, such as time share management fees or holiday club membership fees.

Please note that the conditions set out in the General Conditions section apply to all benefit sections.

Claims evidence required for Section A may include

- Proof of travel cost (confirmation invoice, travel tickets, unused excursion, tour or activity tickets)
- Cancellation invoice or letter confirming whether any refund is due
- Receipts for the additional costs that You have had to pay to continue with Your Trip due to postponement,
- A medical certificate which We will supply for the appropriate Medical Practitioner to complete
- An official letter confirming: redundancy, or an official directive that requires you to cancel or postpone Your Trip
- Summons for jury service
- Confirmation of the major travel event which has prevented You from travelling

Please note: We may require other evidence to support **Your Claim** depending on the circumstances, in which case **We** will contact **You**.

Section L - Emergency & Pre-Travel Assistance

Important Note – This section provides for assistance services only and does not provide cover for emergency medical expenses, evacuation expenses or any other expenses unless they are covered elsewhere in this policy. **We** can arrange for services for **You** as listed above but **You** will be liable to pay any external costs incurred by **You** (e.g. medical expenses, repatriation costs, baggage trace fees etc.) directly if, and to the extent that, cover for such costs is not provided in another section of **Your** policy.

The Assistance Company will provide twenty-four (24) hour worldwide pre-trip and emergency assistance services.

If You require medical treatment that necessitates admittance to **Hospital** as an in-patient, emergency transportation services or to return **Home** for any reason covered by this policy, **You** must contact the **Assistance Company** and follow their advice or instruction.

Failure to do so may prejudice Your Claim under this policy.

The **Assistance Company** operates a network of service centres that will provide **You** with 24/7 travel assistance before and during **Your Trip**.

Depending on Your specific needs, We can:

- 1. provide pre-trip information on:
 - · local medical conditions at Your destination;
 - · vaccination regulations / recommendations for the planned holiday country
 - · visa and customs provisions
 - · weather and climate
 - · foreign currency provisions
- 2. help **You** in the event of lost baggage, travel documents or credit card by putting **You** in touch with the nearest consulate, embassy or other authorities;
- 3. when medical care is needed, direct **You** to suitable medical facilities, monitor **Your** condition and treatment, and keep **Your** family and friends at **Home** informed;
- 4. confer with Your treating Medical Practitioner to evaluate if and when emergency evacuation and repatriation is necessary, and coordinate all services; and
- 5. provide help to re-schedule travel plans when Your Trip is interrupted by an emergency.

We will try to get You medical attention when You travel but the Assistance Company cannot guarantee that appropriate medical facilities will always be available. The Assistance Company is only provided to assess and monitor Your condition remotely and cannot take over the running of Your medical treatment. Please note that where Your Claim is not covered under the policy, the provision of emergency assistance will not in itself be an admission of liability of Your Claim.

To contact the Assistance Company, phone from anywhere in the world on +1 416 621 6820.

IMPORTANT CONTACT DETAILS

POLICY ENQUIRIES

Cancellation Plan, Protection Plan, Basic Trip Protection, Trip Protection Plus, Premier Trip Protection Residents of Quebec only

Toll Free: 1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Residents of other provinces

Toll Free: 866-591-5452

International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

Collision Damage Plan (Car rental) - All provinces

Toll free: 1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Hours of Operation:

Monday to Friday - 7.00 am to 7.00 pm Central except public holidays

EMERGENCY MEDICAL ASSISTANCE - 24/7

For Quebec, New Brunswick, Newfoundland, Saskatchewan residents

Canada & Continental USA: 1-877-281-0082 (toll free)

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

For Other Provinces:

Canada & Continental USA: 866-591-5452 (toll free) International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

IMPORTANT: Emergency Medical and Dental Expense claims if applicable to the Plan you have purchased (Benefits B1 & B4 only), You must contact Us before seeking medical attention, and a failure to call will result in Your being responsible for 30% of any eligible expenses incurred, or no reimbursement, unless Your medical condition prevents You from calling. You must call as soon as medically possible or have someone call on Your behalf.

Residents of New Brunswick, Newfoundland, Saskatchewan

Phone: +1-877-281-0082

International: +1-819-780-0646 (collect)

Residents of Other Provinces

Toll Free: 1-866-591-5452

International: +1-416-621-6820 (collect)

For other claims, file online at https://claims.travelguard.com/myclaim/ca

© AIG - All Rights Reserved